
 

CITY OF SAN ANTONIO 
REQUEST FOR QUALIFICATIONS (RFQ)  

FOR  
CAPITAL PROGRAM MANAGEMENT STAFF AUGMENTATION 

RFQ: CIMS061312AM 
 

AMENDMENT #1 
 

July 3, 2012 
 

Amendment #1 includes responses to questions received in writing before the deadline stated in the RFQ and also 
includes changes to the RFQ and RFQ solicitation documents.   
 

I. RFQ QUESTIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS  
 
RFQ Related Questions: 
 
1. Question: My firm is part of the Market Street Realignment Project Design Team.  We would like to pursue 

the CIMS Capital Program Management Staff Augmentation RFQ.  Will our participation on the Design Team 
of Market Street conflict us out of participating on this RFQ? 

 
Response:  There are no restrictions on firms submitting proposals for this RFQ. 

 
2. Question: Per Section II Scope of Services on page 4 of 27, “At least one member of the Team must be a 

registered Architect with a minimum of five (5) years of experience in large-scale facilities (preferably over 
$100,000,000.)”  Can you please qualify this statement?  Is COSA looking for Architects with 5 years of 
experience on multiple large-scale facility projects at $100M each or for Architects with experience on $100M 
worth of projects over the course of 5 years?  As an SBE looking to team with other SBE firms, a requirement 
of experience on individual projects of this size and magnitude ($100M) could exclude many small firms. 
 
Response: As noted in the RFQ, “over $100,000,000” is a preferred qualification, not a requirement.  This 
would relate to a single large-scale facility project in the past 5 years, not a combination of all projects in the 
past 5 years. 

3. Question: Page 5 of 2 of the RFQ, item #1 under Construction Management it states to perform detailed 
engineering calculations. Please describe what elements of the building design these calculations are 
required, (mechanical air, structural, electrical, etc. ). Or dependent on cost of the calculations should the 
answer to this question be determined after the RFQ process?  

Response: Calculations may relate to any area of construction. 

4. Question: Should we assume the DB will be responsible for submission and obtaining the building permit, 
and the CIMS augmentation staff would monitor the permit process?  

Response: The Design-Build firm is ultimately responsible for the permitting process; however, the Program 
Management Team may be required to assist with as well as monitor that process. 
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5. Question: On the project sheets, will the page limitation be increased from 2 to 3 pages to allow firms to include 
all information required on items 1 through 8? 

 
 Response: No, the page limitation on this section will not be increased. 

6. Question: In the project sheets, can Respondent include projects or services performed by key personnel 
completed while employed by another firm? 

 
 Response:  Yes, as long as the project sheets states that the projects or services were performed by the key 

personnel while employed at another firm. 
 
7. Question: Is it possible for the City to have more than one program management team assigned at same time for 

the same projects? 
 
 Response: Yes. 
  
8. Question: Can subconsultants be allowed to submit or be part of a team on both this RFQ and on the Design-

Build RFQ for the Convention Center?   
 
 Response: Yes, subconsultants may submit and be part of a team or multiple teams for this RFQ and for the 

Convention Center Design-Build RFQ.  
 
9. Question: What if the same firm is selected for both this RFQ and the Design-Build RFQ for the Convention 

Center?  How will City handle this? 
 
 Response: The City will evaluate this situation and make a determination at that time, if this occurs. Most likely 

the same firm will not be selected to perform work for both RFQs.  
 
10. Question: Regarding the question #9, does this also apply to subconsultants?  
 
 Response: Yes, see response to question #9. 
 
11. Question: Regarding inspection services, will the City use the City inspectors to perform inspection services?   
 
 Response: The services performed by the City inspectors are different than the inspection services outlined in 

this RFQ. The City will have City inspectors assigned to the projects; however, awarded firm will be utilized to 
perform the inspection services as outline in this RFQ, as needed. 

 
12. Question: Do you anticipate needing inspection services for the Market Street project? 
  
 Response: If inspection services are needed for the Market Street project, the awarded firm(s) will be used to 

perform these services. 
 
13. Question: Do you know how many firms will be awarded? 
 
 Response: At this time, the City has not determined how many firms will be awarded a contract for this RFQ. The 

City reserves the option to award to one or more firms to provide the services stated in the RFQ. 
 
14. Question: Will this RFQ overlap with the other RFQs on the currently solicited? 
 
 Response: No. 
 
15. Question: Would there be any potential conflict of interest if firms currently have an on-call contract with the City?  
 
 Response: Firms that currently have contract with the City can submit proposals for this RFQ. 

16. Question: If submitting a response as a team, is the discretionary contracts disclosure form required to be 
submitted by ALL team members or just the PRIME firm? 
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Response: For clarification, only the prime firm or all parties involved in a joint venture are required to 
complete and submit the discretionary contracts disclosure form. The prime firm or joint venture parties must 
list all subconsultants on the discretionary contract disclosure form. Subconsultants are not required to 
complete and submit the discretionary disclosure form. 
 

17. Question: If submitting a response as a team, is the litigation disclosure form required to be submitted by 
ALL team members or just the PRIME firm? 

 
Response: The litigation disclosure form is required to be completed and submitted by the prime firm or all 
joint venture parties only. Subconsultants are not required to complete and submit this form. 
 

18. Question: If submitting a response as a team, is proof of insurability required to be submitted by ALL team 
members or just the PRIME firm? 

 
Response: Proof of insurability is required only by the prime firm or from all the joint venture parties if a joint 
venture is formed. Proof of insurability is not required to be submitted by the subconsultants. 
 

19. Question: How much of the contract work is anticipated to include Number 17 Phase II work and Number 18 
Environmental remediation/clean-up and design? 
 
Response: No determination can be made at this time on the amount of work which may be required under 
any one specific section of the Capital Program Management Staff Augmentation contract. 
 

20. Question: Is there any kind of conflict of subconsultants being on both the staff augmentation team and a 
design-build team? 

 
Response: See response to questions #8, #9, #10.  
 

21. Question: Does prior applicable experience have to be limited to five years or sooner?  Especially for HBCC 
and CoSA projects or convention centers? 
 
Response: See Section II of this Amendment for changes to this section in the RFQ. 

22. Question: I believe this was discussed at the Pre-Submittal meeting, but please confirm that the 
Discretionary Contracts Disclosure form must be completed by each member of the submitting team, and that 
the Litigation Disclosure form must be completed by the prime firm only.  

Response: See response to questions #16 and #17. 

23. Question: For the insurance requirements, are general liability and workman's comp certificates sufficient?  

Response: See posted Contract Template for insurance requirements. 

24. Question: Will the Design-Build Team chosen for the Convention Center project be required to provide 
Materials Testing for Quality Assurance or Materials Testing for Quality Control?  If not, will the City provide 
these services through a current “on-call” contract or through this staff augmentation contract? 

Response: The Design-Build firm will be required to provide Quality Control.  Quality Assurance will be 
provided through the Capital Program Management Staff Augmentation contract. 

25. Question: If a Team member for this RFQ has a current “on-call” contract with the City to provide these 
services (listed on question #24), will it be a conflict of interest or create any other problems with regards to 
providing these services within the framework of BOTH the “on-call” and staff augmentation contracts?   It 
seems that in either case the firm providing the Materials Testing services is an extension of the City’s staff. 

Response: Current On-Call contracts are not expected to be utilized on the HBGCC Project.  The Staff 
Augmentation contract is designed to cover requirements for the HBGCC and related projects only. 
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26. Question: As of Thursday, June 28, Exhibit B (Contract Template and General Conditions) is not listed with 
this RFQ on the City's Purchasing Site.  Please provide status of when this will be available. 

Response: The Contract Template and General Conditions have been posted to the City’s website.  

 
SBEDA Related Questions: 

 
 

27. Question: If submitting a response as a team, does each team member need to submit a narrative that 
describes their outreach and diversity practices in general? 

 
Response:  No. Only Prime Respondents are required to submit a narrative describing their outreach and 
diversity practices.  

 
28. Question: On 25% SBE Subcontracting Goal, can some of the percentage be from MWBE? 
 

Response: Yes. The 25% SBE Subcontracting goal may be achieved with the participation of certified 
M/WBE subconsultants, since M/WBEs must also be certified as SBEs headquartered or having a significant 
business presence within the San Antonio Metropolitan Statistical Area (SAMSA). 
 

29. Question: Are there any points given to an SBE Prime?  

Response: No points will be awarded to SBE Primes.  
 

30. Question: If we are prime and don’t meet the MWBE but we have a 3rd tier sub would we get the 
 points. 

 
Response: No evaluation points will be awarded to non-M/WBE Prime Respondents through subcontracting 
to certified M/WBE firms. Furthermore, the City will not count second- or third-tier subconsultant participation 
for this contract.  The M/WBE Prime Contractor Program is designated solely for certified S/MBE or S/WBE 
Primes who are headquartered or demonstrate a significant business presence in the San Antonio 
Metropolitan Statistical area (SAMSA) and propose to retain 51% M/WBE utilization through prime and/or 
subconsultant participation.  

31. Question: We understand that there is a 24% Small Business goal for this proposal – is there an additional 
minority or women-owned business goal? 

Response: Respondents are required to meet a 25% SBE Subcontracting Goal by subcontracting to 
certified SBE subconsultants headquartered or demonstrating a significant business presence in the SAMSA.  
Significant business presence is defined as a business that is located within the SAMSA for at least one year 
and from which 20% of its full-time, part-time, and contract employees are regularly based, and from which a 
substantial role in the performance of a Commercially Useful Function is conducted).  The eight (8) counties 
that makeup the SAMSA are Atascosa, Bandera, Bexar, Comal, Guadalupe, Kendall, Medina and Wilson.  
Although there is no specific M/WBE Subcontracting goal assigned to this contract, M/WBE prime 
Respondents earning the five (5) evaluation preference points must propose at least 51% M/WBE utilization 
either through prime participation or a combination of prime and subconsultant participation. 

 
32. Question:  Can a joint venture earn the five (5) SBEDA evaluation points, if one or more J/V partners are 

certified M/WBE?  
 

Response:  No.  A joint venture is not eligible to earn any portion of the five (5) SBEDA evaluation points 
 

33. Question:  In order to meet the 25% SBE subcontracting goal for this contract, will the City count second- or 
third-tier subconsultants?  

 
Response:  No.  The City will only count first-tier subconsultants for this contract. 

 



 
II. REVISIONS TO THE RFQ AND SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS 

34. Article IX. Award of Contract and Reservation of Rights, Item F on page 17, has been revised to read: 
 

“The City administers its design and construction management through an Internet-based 
management system.  All vendors will be required to use the City’s system and submit schedules.” 
 

 
35. Article V. Submittal Document Requirements and Evaluation Criteria- Item 7. Statement of Qualification, 

Evaluation Criteria D. SBEDA - M/WBE Prime Contract Program  on page 14 has been revised to read: 
“Certified M/WBE firms (see Minority/Women Business Enterprise definition) headquartered or having 
a Significant Business Presence within the San Antonio Metropolitan Statistical Area responding to 
this solicitation as Prime Consultants proposing at least 51% M/WBE participation (Prime and/or Sub-
Consultant) will receive five (5) evaluation criteria percentage Points.” 

 
36. Article V. Submittal Document Requirements and Evaluation Criteria- Item 7, Statement of Qualifications, 

Evaluation Criteria A: Experience & Qualifications of the Prime Firm and Key Personnel- Item 3, Project 
Sheets on page 11 has been revised to read: 

 
“Utilizing a two (2) page project sheet for each, identify five (5) projects completed in the last ten (10) 
years, giving preference to projects which are similar in scope and size to the scope listed in this 
RFQ…”   

 
 

END OF REVISIONS 
 

No other items, dates, or deadlines for this RFQ are changed. 
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